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A Life Safety Code Recertification and 

State Licensure Survey was conducted by 

the Indiana State Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.70(a).

Survey Date:  12/11/15

Facility Number:  013280

Provider Number:  155826

AIM Number:  201270670

At this Life Safety Code survey, 

Evergreen Crossing and the Lofts was 

found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation 

Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 

483.70(a), Life Safety From Fire and the 

2000 Edition of the National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 

Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 18, New 

Health Care Occupancies and 410 IAC 

16.2. 

This facility located on the first floor of a 

two story building was determined to be 

of Type V (111) construction and fully 

sprinklered.  The facility has a fire alarm 

system with smoke detection in the 

corridors, in all areas open to the 

corridors and has hard wired smoke 

detectors in all resident sleeping rooms.  

K 0000  

FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete

Any defiencystatement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that

other safegaurds provide sufficient protection to the patients. (see instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days

following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14

days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to 

continued program participation.

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Event ID: BJUT21 Facility ID: 013280

TITLE

If continuation sheet Page 1 of 8

(X6) DATE



(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

01/05/2016PRINTED:

FORM APPROVED

OMB NO. 0938-0391

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES

AND PLAN OF CORRECTION  IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION

A. BUILDING

B. WING

(X3) DATE SURVEY

       COMPLETED

NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER
STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

(X4) ID

PREFIX

TAG

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES

(EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL

REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)

PREFIX

TAG

 ID
PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION

(EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE

DEFICIENCY)

(X5)

COMPLETION

DATE
CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE

INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46254

155826 12/11/2015

EVERGREEN CROSSING AND THE LOFTS

5404 GEORGETOWN ROAD

01

The facility has a capacity of 70 and had 

a census of 42 at the time of this visit.

All areas where residents have customary 

access were sprinklered and all areas 

providing facility services were 

sprinklered.

Quality Review on 12/16/15 by Lex 

Brashear, LSC Specialist

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

There is a written plan for the protection of 

all patients and for their evacuation in the 

event of an emergency.     18.7.1.1

K 0048

SS=D

Bldg. 01

Based on record review, observation and 

interview; the facility failed to include 

the use of kitchen K class fire 

extinguishers in 1 of 1 written fire safety 

plans for the facility.  LSC 18.7.2.2 

requires written health care occupancy 

fire safety plans shall provide for the 

following:

(1) Use of alarms

(2) Transmission of alarm to the fire 

department

(3) Response to alarms

(4) Isolation of fire

(5) Evacuation of immediate area

(6) Evacuation of smoke compartment

(7) Preparation of floors and building for 

evacuation

(8) Extinguishment of fire

This deficient practice affects five staff 

K 0048  

The facility policy was updated to 

include “activate the overhead 

hood extinguishing system to 

suppress a fire before using a K 

type fire extinguisher”.  Prior to 

January 8, 2015 the Maintenance 

Director will inservice kitchen staff 

regarding this policy change.  The 

revised policy will be reviewed at 

the January Quality Assurance 

Meeting. 
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and visitors in the kitchen.

Findings include:

Based on review of "Disaster and 

Emergency Plan" documentation with the 

Environmental Services Director during 

record review from 9:15 a.m. to 11:10 

a.m. on 12/11/15, the facility's written 

fire safety plan did not address the use of 

the K class fire extinguisher located in 

the kitchen in relationship with the use of 

the kitchen overhead extinguishing 

system.  Based on interview at the time of 

record review, the Environmental 

Services Director acknowledged the 

written fire safety plan for the facility did 

not include the policy to activate the 

overhead hood extinguishing system to 

suppress a fire before using a K class fire 

extinguisher.  Based on observation with 

the Environmental Services Director 

during a tour of the facility from 11:10 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on 12/11/15, one K 

class fire extinguisher was observed 

installed in the kitchen.

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

There is an automatic sprinkler system, 

installed in accordance with NFPA 13, 

Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler 

Systems, with approved components, 

K 0056

SS=E

Bldg. 01
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devices, and equipment, to provide 

complete coverage of all portions of the 

facility.  The system is maintained in 

accordance with NFPA 25, Standard for the 

Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of 

Water-Based Fire Protection Systems.  

There is a reliable, adequate water supply 

for the system.  The system is equipped with 

waterflow and tamper switches which are 

connected to the fire alarm system.      

18.3.5.

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure a complete 

automatic sprinkler system was provided 

for 1 of 1 elevator equipment rooms in 

accordance with NFPA 13, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems to 

provide complete coverage for all 

portions of the building.  NFPA 13, 

5-13.6.2 states automatic sprinklers in 

elevator machine rooms shall be ordinary 

or intermediate temperature rating.  

ASME/ANSI A17.1 permits sprinklers in 

elevator machine rooms when there is a 

means for disconnecting the main line 

power supply to the affected elevator 

automatically upon or prior to the 

application of water from the sprinkler 

located in the machine room provided the 

means is independent of the elevator 

control and cannot be self-resetting;  The 

activation of sprinklers outside the 

machine room is not to disconnect the 

main line power supply and smoke 

detectors are not used to activate the 

sprinkler in the machine room or to 

K 0056 A new sprinkler line and head will 

be professionally installed in the 

elevator mechanical room no 

later than January 8, 2015. 

01/08/2016  12:00:00AM
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disconnect the main line power supply.  

This deficient practice could affect ten 

residents, staff and visitors in the vicinity 

of the elevator machine room.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

Environmental Services Director during a 

tour of the facility from 11:10 a.m. to 

1:00 p.m. on 12/11/15, the elevator 

machine room lacked sprinkler coverage.  

Based on interview at the time of 

observation, the Environmental Services 

Director acknowledged the elevator 

machine room lacked sprinkler coverage.

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Cooking facilities are protected in 

accordance with 9.2.3.     18.3.2.6, NFPA 96

K 0069

SS=D

Bldg. 01

1.  Based on record review and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure 1 of 1 kitchen 

range hood's fire extinguishing 

equipment was inspected and approved 

every 6 months by properly trained and 

qualified persons.  LSC 9.2.3 refers to 

NFPA 96, Standard for Ventilation 

Control and Fire Protection of 

Commercial Cooking Operations.  NFPA 

96, in 8-2 requires the inspection and 

servicing of the fire extinguishing system 

and listed exhaust hoods containing a 

K 0069 The Administrator re-inserviced 

the Maintenance Director 

December 24, 2015 regarding the 

requirement for semiannual 

kitchen range hood fire 

extinguishing equipment 

inspection.  The Maintenance 

Director will submit the 

subsequent two kitchen range 

inspection to the administrator via 

Quality Assurance Meeting for 

follow up review to ensure 

compliance.  

01/08/2016  12:00:00AM
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constant or fire actuated water system 

shall be made at least every 6 months by 

properly trained and qualified persons.  

NFPA 96, 8-2.1 requires all actuation 

components, including remote manual 

pull stations, mechanical or electrical 

devices, detectors, actuators, and fire 

actuated dampers shall be checked for 

proper operation during the inspection in 

accordance with the manufacturer's listed 

procedures.  This deficient practice could 

affect five staff and visitors in the 

kitchen.  

Findings include:

Based on review of 360 Services "Report 

#FP 10611428" documentation dated 

09/18/15 with the Environmental 

Services Director during record review 

from 9:15 a.m. to 11:10 a.m. on 

12/11/15, semiannual kitchen range hood 

fire extinguishing equipment inspection 

six months prior to 09/18/15 was not 

available for review.  Based on interview 

at the time of record review, the 

Environmental Services Director 

acknowledged semiannual kitchen range 

hood fire extinguishing equipment 

inspection six months prior to 09/18/15 

was not available for review.

3.1-19(b)
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2.  Based on record review, observation 

and interview; the facility failed to ensure 

1 of 1 kitchen exhaust systems was 

inspected semiannually.  NFPA 96, 1998 

Edition, Standard for Ventilation Control 

and Fire Protection of Commercial 

Cooking Operations, 8-3.1 requires 

hoods, grease removal devices, fans, 

ducts, and other appurtenances shall be 

cleaned to bare metal at frequent intervals 

prior to surfaces becoming heavily 

contaminated with grease or oily sludge.  

After the exhaust system is cleaned to 

bare metal, it shall not be coated with 

powder or other substance.  The entire 

exhaust system shall be inspected by a 

properly trained, qualified, and certified 

company or person(s) in accordance with 

Table 8-3.1.  Table 8-3.1 requires 

systems serving moderate volume 

cooking operations shall be inspected 

semiannually.  This deficient practice 

could affect five staff and visitors in the 

kitchen.

Findings include:

Based on record review with the 

Environmental Services Director from 

9:15 a.m. to 11:10 a.m. on 12/11/15, 

documentation of a semiannual kitchen 

exhaust systems inspections within the 

most recent twelve month period was not 

available for review.  Based on 
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observation with the Environmental 

Services Director during a tour of the 

facility from 11:10 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on 

12/11/15, an inspection record sticker 

was affixed to the range hood kitchen 

exhaust system by 360 Services dated 

September 2015.  Based on interview at 

the time of record review and of 

observation, the Environmental Services 

Director acknowledged documentation of 

a semiannual kitchen hood extinguishing 

system service record six months prior to 

September 2015 was not available for 

review.  

3.1-19(b)
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